
 

 

 ADDENDUM TWO 

 

 
DATE:  November 12, 2013 
 
TO:  All Vendors  
 
FROM: Michelle Thompson/Kristi Kling, Buyers 

State Purchasing Bureau  
 
RE:  Questions and Answers for RFP Number 4534Z1 

to be opened November 22, 2013 2:00 p.m. Central Time 
 

 

 
  
Following are the questions submitted and answers provided for the above mentioned 
Request For Proposal.  The questions and answers are to be considered as part of the 
Request For Proposal. 

QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

1. RFP p. 30: Does the Department 
require that the NET Call Center is to 
be located in Nebraska? 

No, the NET Call Center is not required to be 
located in Nebraska.  

2. Are there any concerns or issues that 
the Department has with the current 
service that will require immediate 
attention should a new Contractor be 
selected? 

The State desires bidders to provide the best 
solution to the requirements of the RFP. 

3. What is the Contract Term? (5 years? 
Any extensions?) 

 A contract resulting from this Request for 
Proposal will be issued for a period of three (3) 
years from contract start date, with the option to 
renew for one (1) additional two (2) year period 
as mutually agreed upon by all parties.  
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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

4. RFP p. 28, IV.A.2: "The service ... shall 
be performed by NET providers with 
active service provider agreements 
with the Department or pre-purchased 
NET services by the Contractor." 
Please confirm that the transportation 
providers contract directly with the 
Department, and not with the 
Contractor. If that is the case, please 
elaborate on the role of the Contractor 
in establishing the transportation 
network. 

Yes, transportation providers must be enrolled 
as a Medicaid provider to participate in the 
Contractor’s Provider Network. The role of the 
Contractor in establishing the transportation 
network is described in Section IV.C.4.  

5. RFP p. xi: Will there be a pre-proposal 
meeting? 

No, there will not be a pre-proposal 
conference. 

6. RFP Page Number 7 RFP Section N. 
SECRETARY OF STATE/TAX 
COMMISSIONER REGISTRATION 
REQUIREMENTS RFP Reference 
Language “Bidders should submit the 

above certification(s) with their bid.” 

Questions for State; please specify 
exactly which certifications should be 
submitted with the bid. 

 Per II.N. Secretary of State/Tax 
Commissioner Registration Requirements,  

“All bidders shall be authorized to transact 
business in the State of Nebraska.  All bidders 
are expected to comply with all Nebraska 
Secretary of State registration 
requirements…The Bidder who is the recipient 
of an Intent to Award will be required to certify 
that it has so complied and produce a true and 
exact copy of its current (within 90 days), valid 
Certificate of Good Standing or Letter of Good 
Standing…” 

7. RFP Page Number 30 RFP Section 
IV.B.10 .CUSTOMER SERVICE CALL 
CENTER RFP Reference Language 
"The contractor shall maintain voice 
mail routing and response procedures" 
Questions for State Is the desired 
intent to use voice mail routing and 
response procedures for after-hours 
calls only or for all calls?  

The contractor is required to have voicemail 
routing and response procedures for after-
hours calls. During business hours, calls must 
be answered by a Customer Service 
Representative.  

8. RFP Page Number 30 RFP Section 
IV.B.10.CUSTOMER SERVICE CALL 
CENTER RFP Reference Language 
"The contractor shall accept NET 
service requests by telephone and 
secure online ordering." Questions for 
State Can NET service requests be 
accepted by fax from facilities that are 
not capable of online ordering?  

Yes, the State is willing to consider the 
contractor accepting service requests by 
facsimile with the stipulation that all facsimiles 
are processed within 24 hours of receipt.  
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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

9. RFP Page Number 31 RFP Section 
IV.B.11.a.ii. CALL CENTER 
TRACKING RFP Reference Language 
“All incoming calls are answered within 
three (3) minutes, ninety (90) percent 
of days in a month” Questions for State 
It is unclear if the State is requesting 
the automated response system be 
programmed to answer calls within 
three rings or three minutes. Please 
clarify. 

The automated response system must 
automatically answer calls within three rings.  
The call is then placed in queue for no more 
than three minutes.  

Section IV.B.m has been amended to read: 

m. The numbers of available call center staff 
operators by the time of day and the day of the 
week, in half-hour increments. 
 
n. The contractor shall maintain sufficient 
equipment and call center staff to ensure, and 
verify through a monthly report, that on a 
monthly basis: 

 
i. The automated voice response system 

is programmed to answer all calls 
within three rings; 

 
ii. The average queue time after the initial 

automatic voice response is three 
(3) minutes or less;  

 
iii. All incoming calls are answered within 

three (3) minutes, ninety (90) 
percent of days in a month; 

 
iv. The average queue time for a system 

to assist deaf/hearing impaired 
clients, such as the Nebraska 
Relay or TDD, shall not exceed 
three (3) minutes, ninety (90) 
percent of days in a month. 

 

10. RFP Page Number 31 RFP Section 
IV.B. 11.a.ii. CALL CENTER 
TRACKING RFP Reference Language 
“All incoming calls are answered within 
three (3) minutes, ninety (90) percent 
of days in a month” Questions for State 
Please confirm the State wants all 
incoming calls to be answered by the 
automated voice response system 
within three minutes, 90 percent of the 
days of the month.  

See Question 9.  
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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

11. RFP Page Number 31 RFP Section 
IV.C.1. PROGRAM EDUCATION AND 
OUTREACH RFP Reference 
Language "The contractor shall 
provide written client education 
material on how to access NET 
services through the contractor for all 
new program eligible households 
within five(5) business days of 
presence on the client eligibility file. 
New client education materials shall be 
sent through automated dispersal from 
the contractor’s system to ensure 
consistent and equal access."  
Questions for State If the State can 
provide client email addresses, can 
this material be provided to clients via 
email?  

No, the State does not collect and store 
clients’ email addresses.   

12. RFP Page Number 32 RFP Section 
2.e.ii. CLIENT SCREENING AND 
SERVICE APPROVAL RFP Reference 
Language “the requested 
transportation is to the nearest 
appropriate service covered by the 
Medicaid program” Questions for State 
In the RFP Glossary of Terms 
regarding “nearest service,” it states 
that “requested transportation shall be 
within 20 miles of the client’s residence 
or to the nearest appropriate service 
provider…” In instances when the trip 
is less than 20 miles from the client’s 
residence, does the contractor still 
need to confirm and document that it is 
the “nearest appropriate service 
provider”?  

No, the client has freedom to choose a 
medical provider within a 20 mile radius of 
their home.  
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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

13. RFP Page Number 35 RFP Section 
3.a. CLIENT RIGHTS RFP Reference 
Language “a. CLIENT RIGHTS-The 
contractor shall comply with any 
applicable Federal and State laws that 
pertain to client rights and ensure that 
the contractor’s personnel and NET 
providers comply with all applicable 
Federal and State laws that pertain to 
client rights when furnishing services 
to clients. Each client is guaranteed 
the right to: be treated with respect and 
with due consideration for his or her 
dignity and privacy; request and 
receive a copy of his or her 
transportation records; and free to 
exercise his or her rights, and that the 
exercise of those rights does not 
adversely affect the way the contractor, 
NET providers or the Department treat 
the client.”  Questions for State Will 
these requests be accepted directly 
from the Client, or through the 
Designated Department personnel?  

Requests pertaining to client rights may be 
submitted by either the client (or their 
designated representative) or Department 
personnel.  

14. RFP Page Number 35 RFP Section 
3.a. CLIENT RIGHTS RFP Reference 
Language “a. CLIENT RIGHTS-The 
contractor shall comply with any 
applicable Federal and State laws that 
pertain to client rights and ensure that 
the contractor’s personnel and NET 
providers comply with all applicable 
Federal and State laws that pertain to 
client rights when furnishing services 
to clients. Each client is guaranteed 
the right to: be treated with respect and 
with due consideration for his or her 
dignity and privacy; request and 
receive a copy of his or her 
transportation records; and free to 
exercise his or her rights, and that the 
exercise of those rights does not 
adversely affect the way the contractor, 
NET providers or the Department treat 
the client.”  Questions for State Will 
there be a charge to the client for the 
cost of research, processing, and 
mailing?  

As with all Medicaid records, a client has a 
right to review his/her own case record without 
payment restriction. The maximum number 
of copies provided upon client request within 
the last three years was three pages and all 
requests were ad hoc reports consisting of trip 
history information. 
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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

15. RFP Page Number 37 RFP Section 
3.c. APPEAL FOR A FAIR HEARING 
AND OTHER LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 
RFP Reference Language “iv. 
Transcriptions of recorded calls; 
and…” Questions for State Is it 
mandatory to have the transcription of 
recorded calls available?  

No, the Department will request transcription 
of recorded calls as determined necessary.  

16. RFP Page Number 38 IV.C.4.e. NET 
PROVIDER SERVICE DELIVERY 
RFP Reference Language "The 
contractor shall ensure that NET 
providers deliver service that allows 
clients to arrive promptly for 
appointments, so that there is an 
excessive wait for their transportation. 
The pick-up and wait times should 
align with the following requirements:" 
Questions for State Did the State 
intend to say "there is not an excessive 
wait"?  

Section IV.C.4e is hereby  amended to read:, 
“ e.NET PROVIDER SERVICE DELIVERY  

The contractor shall ensure that NET 
providers deliver service that allows 
clients to arrive promptly for 

appointments, so that there is not an 
excessive wait for their transportation.  
The pick-up and wait times should 
align with the following requirements.” 

17. RFP Page Number 41 RFP Section 
IV.C. 6. NET PROVIDER CLAIM 
SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS RFP 
Reference Language Referencing the 
entire requirement. Questions for State 
Does the Department expect any 
changes in the Transportation provider 
payment process to streamline and 
help the reconciliation of records to be 
more consistent? 

The State desires bidders to provide the best 
solution to the requirements of the RFP. 

18. RFP Page Number 41 RFP Section 
IV.C. 6. NET PROVIDER CLAIM 
SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS RFP 
Reference Language Referencing the 
entire requirement. Questions for State 
If yes, can the Department please 
outline this process?  

See Question 17. 

19. RFP Page Number 41 RFP Section 
IV.C. 6. NET PROVIDER CLAIM 
SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS RFP 
Reference Language Referencing the 
entire requirement. Questions for State 
If yes, will the Department be willing to 
go to a more structured EDI process, 
i.e. 837 submit and 835 remittances?  

See Question 17.  
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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

20. RFP Page Number 41 RFP Section 
IV.C. 6. NET PROVIDER CLAIM 
SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS RFP 
Reference Language Referencing the 
entire requirement. Questions for State 
Does the Department expect any 
changes to the schedule of submitting 
claims on behalf of the Transportation 
Providers?  

The State’s expectation of claims submission 
on behalf of the NET Providers can be found 
at IV.C.6.b. 

21. RFP Page Number 41 RFP Section 
IV.C. 6.b. NET PROVIDER CLAIM 
SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS RFP 
Reference Language "The contractor 
shall process and submit no less than 
ninety (90%) percent of NET providers’ 
electronic claims within ten (10) 
business days of receipt of supporting 
trip documentation within a month" 
Questions for State Please clarify 
timing requirement.  

The contractor has ten (10) days after 
verification is received to submit a clean claim 
to the State.  

22. RFP Page Number 41 RFP Section 
IV.C. 6.b. NET PROVIDER CLAIM 
SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS RFP 
Reference Language "The contractor 
shall process and submit no less than 
ninety (90%) percent of NET providers’ 
electronic claims within ten (10) 
business days of receipt of supporting 
trip documentation within a month" 
Questions for State What event or 
point in time is the State referring to as 
a milestone when stating “within a 
month”?  

The State’s expectation to meet this 
requirement is that the contractor would have 
a measureable tool that would indicate 
compliance that 90% of all clean claims 
received were submitted to the Department 
within 10 business days within a calendar 
month. 

23. RFP Page Number 42 RFP Section 
6.e. NET PROVIDER CLAIM 
SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS RFP 
Reference Language "The contractor 
shall ensure client signatures, per 
transportation leg received, are 
provided by the NET Provider to 
support all claims submitted to the 
contractor with the exception of the 
Individual Provider Record of Service 
which may contain one client signature 
per document." Questions for State 
Please confirm that signatures are not 
needed for public transportation trips.  

Client signatures are not required for pre-
purchased transportation services (i.e. fixed 
route public transportation and commercial 
airline services).  
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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

24. RFP Page Number 42 RFP Section 
6.f. NET PROVIDER CLAIM 
SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS RFP 
Reference Language "Within ten (10) 
business days after receipt of the 
additional information by the 
contractor, the contractor shall either 
(1) submit a claim for payment, or (2) 
send a notice of action to the NET 
provider and the status of the payment 
that makes a final request for 
additional information." Questions for 
State Does the notice of action require 
actual documentation to be sent or 
does access to the provider portal 
suffice to enable providers to have 
visibility to the status of all their 
claims?  

No, written notification sent via the United 
States Postal Service to providers is not 
required for those providers with secure web 
portal access.  

25. RFP Page Number 43 RFP Section 
D.2. DATA FILES AND INTERFACE 
SYSTEMS RFP Reference Language 
“ii. Medicaid through file transfer 
protocol with a daily MMIS data feed or 
the Nebraska Medicaid Eligibility 
System line.”  Questions for State 
Currently, the Nebraska Medicaid 
Eligibility System Line is only available 
when the State of Nebraska is open. 
How does the contractor verify 
eligibility during these unavailable 
hours such as after hours or during 
State-recognized holidays?  

Nebraska Medicaid’s Eligibility System Line is 
available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week 365 
days per year.  

Nebraska Medicaid Program Provider 
Information & Client Eligibility Verification 
reference material can be located at: 

http://dhhs.ne.gov/medicaid/Pages/med_eligibi
lity.aspx 

 

26. RFP Page Number 44 RFP Section 
IV.D.4.e. 
CORRESPONDENCE/ELECTRONIC 
COMMUNICATION RFP Reference 
Language "The contractor’s system 
shall store any information disclosed or 
requested about a client." Questions 
for State What are the minimum 
information storage points required?  

The contractor must include, at a minimum, 
the identity of the requestor of the inquiry, the 
client about whom the inquiry was made, the 
content of the inquiry and the response to it.  
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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

27. RFP Page Number 44 RFP Section 
IV.D.4.e. 
CORRESPONDENCE/ELECTRONIC 
COMMUNICATION RFP Reference 
Language "The contractor’s system 
shall store any information disclosed or 
requested about a client." Questions 
for State Please specify which type of 
information is included under this 
requirement.  

See Question 26. 

This requirement includes uploading 
documents that provide support in regard to: 
higher level of care, closest provider, medical 
necessity documentation, Ombudsman 
requests and Senator inquiries.  This 
information should be stored in one file per 
client and be searchable using the client’s 
information.  

 

 

28. RFP Page Number 46 RFP Section 
5.e. GENERAL SYSTEM 
REQUIREMENTS RFP Reference 
Language “A separate exception report 
shall be created automatically for all 
data that is stored that is out of 
specification. It should be possible to 
automatically e-mail this report to the 
Department upon request.” Questions 
for State Will the State please provide 
more clarity to this requirement?  

The RFP is hereby amended to delete Section 
IV.D.5e. 

29. RFP Page Number 46 RFP Section 
5.e. GENERAL SYSTEM 
REQUIREMENTS RFP Reference 
Language “A separate exception report 
shall be created automatically for all 
data that is stored that is out of 
specification. It should be possible to 
automatically e-mail this report to the 
Department upon request.” Questions 
for State Please clarify what the 
"exception report" is.  

See Question 28. 

30. RFP Page Number 46 RFP Section 
5.e. GENERAL SYSTEM 
REQUIREMENTS RFP Reference 
Language “A separate exception report 
shall be created automatically for all 
data that is stored that is out of 
specification. It should be possible to 
automatically e-mail this report to the 
Department upon request.” Questions 
for State What is the State's definition 
of "out of specification"?  

See Question 28.  
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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

31. RFP Page Number 55 RFP Section 
H.3. EXIT STRATEGY RFP Reference 
Language “Any online ordering 
capabilities shall be transferable via a 
link designated by the Department.” 
Questions for State Is the State asking 
the contractor to transfer the link or 
individual requests?  

The Department will establish a link for the 
contractor’s online ordering.  Individual 
requests must be transferable.   

 

32. RFP Page Number 55 RFP Section 
H.3. EXIT STRATEGY RFP Reference 
Language “Any online ordering 
capabilities shall be transferable via a 
link designated by the Department.” 
Questions for State What is meant by 
transferring "any online ordering 
capabilities"?  

 

The Department will establish a link for the 
contractor’s online ordering.  Individual 
requests must be transferable.   

The client logs in and is directed to another 
site if trip request is for a service on or after a 
specified date. 

 

33. RFP Page Number 57 RFP Section V. 
PROPOSAL INSTRUCTIONS 
Questions for State Where are the 
signed Terms and Conditions to be 
placed in the proposal response?  

The signed Terms and Conditions may be 
placed in its own labeled section of the 
proposal response. 

34. RFP Page Number 58 RFP Section 
V.A.3. CORPORATE OVERVIEW RFP 
Reference Language “subcontractors” 
Questions for State Please confirm the 
references to “subcontractors” 
throughout this section exclude NET 
Providers.  

No, NET Providers are not subcontractors of 
the contractor. 

35. RFP Page Number 59 RFP Section h. 
SUMMARY OF BIDDER’S 
CORPORATE EXPERIENCE 
Questions for State Please clarify if the 
State is requesting all previous 
projects, but will only pick three to 
evaluate, or if the State is requesting 
only three be submitted.  

Bidders may submit an unlimited number of 
projects but the State will review only the first 
three submitted.  

36. RFP Section EXHIBIT 1 Questions for 
State Can you further expand on the 
definition of “Claims Paid” in that “Each 
claim represents a single date of 
service”.  

Only one calendar date of service may be 
billed per claim. 

37. RFP Section EXHIBIT 1 Questions for 
State Does each claim represent a 
single one-way trip that was processed 
and paid?  

No, each claim represents all services 
rendered by a Provider on a single date of 
service for a client. 
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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

38. RFP Section EXHIBIT 1 Questions for 
State How many trips were denied for 
payment by the Department in each FY 
(2012 and 2013)?  

The State does not deny payment of clean 
claims submitted through the contractor. Any 
denied claims by the State were the result of 
interface errors between the State and 
incumbent contractor’s system.  

39. RFP Section EXHIBIT 1 Questions for 
State Please define “Units Total”. Does 
units total equal the total number of 
miles for the fiscal year?  

No, the definition of unit varies by procedure 
code.  The procedure codes and the 
definitions are located in Exhibit 1, Non-
Emergency Transportation Total Expenditures.  

40. Questions for State The current 
contract allows providers of MMIS trips 
180 days to submit their claim. This is 
much longer than industry standard of 
45-90 days. Will this continue to be the 
requirement under this RFP?  

Yes, this is a Medicaid requirement listed in 
471 NAC 3-002.01 regulations. 

The Medicaid Provider bulletin can reviewed 
at: 
http://dhhs.ne.gov/medicaid/Documents/pb135
0.pdf  

41. Questions for State Are trip volumes 
represented in the RFP Exhibits 
consistent with programs to be 
covered under this RFP?  

Yes, trip volumes reflect the programs to be 
covered under this RFP. 

42. Questions for State Please confirm 
that SSAD and MHCP programs are 
not covered under the specs of this 
RFP.  

Social Services Block Grant (SSBG) and 
Medically Handicapped Children’s Program 
(MHCP) are not included under this RFP. 

43. Please provide all contracts, contract 
changes, contract modifications and 
contract addendums of the current 
incumbent contract with the 
Department for the last 3 years.  

Link to DAS contracts: 
http://www.das.state.ne.us/materiel/purchasin
g/contracts/pdfs/46343(o4)ren(1)awd.pdf 

See Exhibit 4 DHHS Contracts 

44. Please provide all contract corrections, 
corrective memos, and action items for 
the last 3 years.  

The State desires bidders to provide the best 
solution to the requirements of the RFP. 

45. Please provide total dollars invoiced by 
the incumbent pertaining to services in 
performance of the Contractorage 
operation and paid by Nebraska each 
month for the last 3 years. This would 
include monthly and any special 
invoices by the incumbent.  

See Question 44. 

46. Will the state provide a CSV cross-
reference report of completed service 
and submitted charges with which the 
contractor can satisfy the requirements 
in section 6(c) of the Technical 
Requirements? 

The State desires bidders to provide the best 
solution to the requirements of the RFP. 

http://dhhs.ne.gov/medicaid/Documents/pb1350.pdf
http://dhhs.ne.gov/medicaid/Documents/pb1350.pdf
http://www.das.state.ne.us/materiel/purchasing/contracts/pdfs/46343(o4)ren(1)awd.pdf
http://www.das.state.ne.us/materiel/purchasing/contracts/pdfs/46343(o4)ren(1)awd.pdf
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47. What format(s) are available for 
creating an EDI with the CONNECT 
system? 

The CONNECT database will not be used for 
EDI purposes. 

48. Please provide the names of all 
companies, agencies and 
organizations submitting questions 
pertaining to RFP # 4534 Z1. 

 In order to protect the integrity of the RFP 
process, the State will not comment on who 
provided questions during the question and 
answer period. 

49. With the incumbent required to turn the 
existing toll free number over to the 
Department upon contract ending (pg. 
55 H. 2.), will that existing toll-free 
number be ported over from the 
incumbent to the new entity on Go Live 
Day? 

The timing of when the existing number will be 
ported over will be part of the final 
implementation plan based on the contract 
award.   

50. In what format(s) and timeline(s) will 
the contractor receive preexisting trip 
authorizations, member eligibility, 
mobility information, and transportation 
provider information to begin 
implementation work? 

This will be determined upon contract award. 

51. With respect to Liability Insurance 
requirements, please confirm that the 
full limits required may be arranged by 
General Liability and Automobile 
Liability policies or by a combination of 
underlying Liability policies and Excess 
or Umbrella Liability policies. 

 The State desires bidders to provide the best 
solution to the requirements of the RFP. 

52. Please confirm that an annual 
renewable performance bond in the 
amount of $250,000. Is acceptable. 

Yes, an annual renewable performance bond 
in the amount of $250,000 is acceptable. 

53. Section IV.4.g - This section states the 
driver's daily log is excluded for fixed-
route public transit systems.  However, 
it also states a copy of all drivers' daily 
logs shall be maintained for exempt 
providers.  Please clarify which NET 
providers are required to maintain 
driver daily logs. 

Pre-purchased fixed route public transit and 
commercial airline services are exempt from 
section IV.C.4.g. 

54. Section IV.4.d.iii - This section requires 
the contractor to maintain a current 
driver's license and vehicle registration 
for Individual Providers. Are these the 
only requirements for Individual 
Providers?  If not, please specify all 
initial and ongoing credentialing 
requirements for Individual Providers.  

Individual Providers must meet all provider 
standards outlined in 471 NAC 27-007. 



Page 13 

QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

55. Form B1 specifies 250,000 NET 
Complete Transportation Legs each 
year. Please reconcile this figure to the 
Utilization data provided in Exhibit 1. 

RFP Form B1, Summary of Indirect & Direct 
Costs has been amended. Please see the 
REVISED Form B1 dated 11/12/13 which 
replaces Form B1 and Form B2 that was 
posted on 10/16/13 and Form B2. 

See Exhibit 5 Non-Emergency Transportation 
Leg Calculations. 

56. Section III.CC - When does the 
Contractor submit the Performance 
Bond? 

 The Performance Bond will be submitted by 
the awarded contractor according to Section 
I.A. Schedule of Events. 

57. Section IV.B.10 - Does the current 
Contractor accept online orders from 
clients?  

No, the incumbent contractor does not accept 
online NET orders. 

58. Section IV.B.10 - When must the 
contractor offer clients the ability to 
order services online? 

Education must be provided to clients to order 
services on-line so the process can be 
effective upon the fully operational start date. 

59. Section V.A.3.d - If the Bidder does not 
have an office location identified at the 
time of the proposal submission, does 
that preclude the Bidder from 
submitting a proposal? 

No, the bidder may indicate where they are 
considering office locations. 

60. Please provide membership 
information by county. 

See Exhibit 6 Medicaid Members by County 

 

61. Please provide number of trips by 
county. 

See Exhibit 2 - Non-Emergency 
Transportation Expenditures by County and 
Procedure Code. 

62. Page 4, F. Submission of Proposals 
states that, “Container(s) utilized for 
original documents should be clearly 
marked “ORIGINAL DOCUMENTS.” 
Does this mean that the original 
documents should be sealed 
separately from the copies? If the 
answer is yes, should the Original 
Technical and Original Cost be sealed 
together or sealed separately? 

 The original does not need to be sealed 
separately from the copies but it must be 
clearly designated “Original”. 

The Technical Response and Cos Proposal 
should be packaged and sealed separately 
(i.e. separate binders) but may arrive in the 
same container. 

63. Page 60 – Section J – Subcontractors 
– are NET Providers considered 
subcontractors for the purposes of this 
RFP, i.e. are we required to provide 
the information requested in section J 
for each proposed NET provider? 

See Question 34. 
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64. Page 42 – Section E – Can you 
provide further detail on the Individual 
Provider Record of Services? Is this 
similar to a trip log for gas mileage 
reimbursement that a volunteer or 
friend/family member would submit? 

The definition of an Individual Provider can be 
located in the Glossary of Terms listed in the 
RFP.  

See Exhibit 7 Individual Transport and 
Escort/Attendant Provider Record of Service 
(MC-220). 

65. Page 40 – The first sentence of page 
says that daily logs for fixed-route 
public transit systems and commercial 
air are excluded from requirement, but 
the next paragraph says NET 
providers are to maintain daily logs for 
Commercial/Public Transportation – 
can you please clarify. 

See Question 53. 

66. P. 28, 3. a. Question:  In Exhibit 1, 
NET Total Expenditures the term 
“Units” is used.  For Code A0090 are 
units the number of miles paid?  Would 
the same follow for codes A0130, 
T2003 and T003-52 that would 
indicate the number of base rates 
paid?  To find the total number of one-
way trips by wheelchair van and 
sedan/van Omaha/Lincoln within and 
not within the corporate city limits, 
would we add just the base rates 
paid?  If not is there a way to figure the 
number of one-way trips throughout 
the state? 

Yes, a unit for A0090 represents a mile. 
Please refer to Exhibit 1. 

 

No, a unit for A0130, T2003, and T2003-52 
represents a one way trip.  Please refer to 
Exhibit 1.  See Question 39. 

 

Yes, add the base rates paid to determine the 
number of one-way trips by wheelchair van 
and sedan/van Omaha/Lincoln within and not 
within the corporate city limits. 

 

See Question #55. 

 

67. P. 33, 2. i. II.  Question:  Section ii 
states, “The Aged and Disabled 
Waiver CAP worksheet shall serve as 
documentation for medical necessity 
regarding Medical escort services.”  
Can this document be automated and 
sent to the physician electronically as 
well as completed by the physician 
electronically with an electronic 
signature, or must the signature be 
original and in ink? 

Clients who are eligible for the Medicaid Aged 
and Disabled Waiver have a CAP worksheet 
that satisfies the medical necessity 
requirement.  The CAP worksheet is provided 
by the State. 

For Medicaid eligible clients that are not 
eligible for services through the Medicaid 
Aged and Disabled Waiver, medical necessity 
documentation must be provided by the 
client’s physician.  The State is willing to 
consider accepting an automated process for 
those medical providers willing to participate. 
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68. P. 38, 4. C & D. Question A:  Section C 
states, “The contractor shall identify, 
recruit, and facilitate the Department’s 
provider enrollment process….” 
Section D states, “Medicaid provider 
re-enrollment is required every five (5) 
years.” If it has been less than five 
years since its’ last enrollment as a 
Medicaid provider as of the start date 
April 1, 2014, will the contractor be 
required to re-enroll the provider?    

Yes, the contractor shall be responsible for 
facilitating the re-enrollment of a Medicaid 
provider prior to the expiration of their 
Medicaid & Long-Term Care Service Provider 
Agreement. 

69. Question B:  Please provide a list of 
each NET provider, its’ contact 
information, and its’ enrollment or last 
re-enrollment date, so that we can 
determine how many providers will 
have to be re-enrolled before the April 
1 start date as well as after that date. 
Please include the number of each 
provider’s vehicles by vehicle type and 
number of drivers. 

See Exhibit 8 Enrolled Common Carriers and 
Public Exempt Providers by County for FY 
2013. A full Medicaid provider file will be made 
available to the contractor upon award of the 
contract, to include Individual Providers. 

The contractor will be responsible for provider 
renewals effective on the fully operational start 
date.  

The State does not collect the number of each 
provider’s vehicles or number of drivers. 

70. P. 41, 6. A. Question: This section 
states, “The Contractor shall submit 
clean claims in electronic format to the 
Department on behalf of NET 
providers for direct Medicaid Payment.” 
Does the Department notify the 
provider that the claim has been 
submitted, and within how many days 
does the Department make payment to 
the provider? 

Providers receive remittance advice on all 
claims received by Medicaid. Claim 
processing guidance can be located at: 
http://dhhs.ne.gov/medicaid/Pages/med 
claimsfaq.aspx 

  

71. P. 44, 5. b. vi. Question:  Section vi 
states, “The contractor’s system shall:  
Be designed to automate all trip 
assignment to providers based first on 
lowest cost, appropriate mode of 
transportation and second on provider 
performance.” What are the 
Department’s indicators of provider 
performance? 

The State’s expectation is the bidder will  
propose performance indicators  based on 
industry standards.  Identification and approval 
will be finalized prior to readiness testing.  

72. With regard to the overall program, 
what areas is the Department looking 
to improve? 

The State desires bidders to provide the best 
solution to the requirements of the RFP. 

73. What is the unit of measure for each of 
the procedure codes? 

See Questions 39 and 66, and Exhibit 1. 

http://dhhs.ne.gov/medicaid/Pages/med%20claimsfaq.aspx
http://dhhs.ne.gov/medicaid/Pages/med%20claimsfaq.aspx
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74. Should we assume the same number 
of customer service calls for FY2014 
as for FY 2013? 

The State does not assume call volume 
estimates. 

75. What is the average handle time per 
call? 

The average work time per call for the last six 
months was 4:01 minutes. 

76. Can you provide any data on the 
number of oral translations provided 
for FY 2013? 

This data is not collected. The incumbent 
contractor has bilingual employees.  

77. How many providers is the state 
currently working with?  

As of August 2013, there were 1,264 NET 
Providers enrolled with Medicaid.  

78. Are you seeing network coverage 
issues in any particular area of the 
state that we can pro-actively address? 

The region of Western Nebraska, and Omaha 
Metro short-distance trips that originate in one 
county with a destination in another county are 
low access areas. 

79. How many customer service 
representatives (CSRs) does the state 
(or the incumbent contractor) currently 
employ? 

The incumbent contractor currently employs 
15 customer service representatives.  

80. How many program eligible 
households were there in FY 2013?  

The Department does not collect this data. 

81. Do you have an estimate of how many 
new clients become eligible for 
Medicaid on a monthly basis? 

Based on data available, below is the  number 
of new certified eligibles during each month 
listed below that were not previously eligible in 
the  current state fiscal year: 
 
March 2013 - 2,068 new eligibles 
April    2013 -1,887 new eligibles  
May    2013 - 1,752 new eligibles 
June   2013 - 1,656 new eligibles 

82. Page 34, section J. Does the 
verification come from the rendering or 
referring healthcare provider when the 
member requests a trip more than 20 
one way miles? Does the 20 one way 
mileage restriction apply to all types of 
appts? (Dialysis patients must go 
where there is chair time available). 
Are members that live in rural counties 
excluded from the mileage restriction? 

The verification code may come from either 
the rendering or referring physician.  

Yes, this applies to dialysis appointments.  

No, there are no populations excluded.  

83. Is there a strong interest in retaining 
the current staff or key persons? 

The contractor must fulfill the personnel 
requirements of Section III.I. 
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84. Please provide staffing information for 
all positions: position titles, number of 
FTE for each position,  wage, and 
years employed.   

Position titles are available in the current 
contract. The data is not collected by the 
State.   

85. Are the current employees represented 
by a labor organization? If so, please 
provide the name of the labor 
organization and a copy of the 
Collective bargaining agreement. 

The incumbent contractor employees are not 
represented by a labor organization to the 
State’s knowledge. 

86. Please provide the current medical 
benefits plan offered to the employees 
including cost of employee premiums 
and detailed plan information including 
deductibles and copays. 

The data is not collected by the State. The 
contractor is responsible for their employee 
benefits. 

87. Please provide the current contractor 
office locations. 

The incumbent contractor’s customer service 
call center for Nebraska NET services is 
located in Omaha, Nebraska. 

88. Please provide current number of staff 
by position title in each office location. 

See Question 84. 

89. Please provide a list of the current 
transportation providers and the 
number and type of trips they provide 
annually, by County. 

See Question 69. 

90. How many trip requests are unfilled 
annually? 

The State’s defines unfilled trips as authorized 
trips where no provider was available to 
provide the requested service. 

For State Fiscal Year 2013 – 2,612 trips 

For State Fiscal Year 2014 (through October 
31, 2013) 850 trips. 

91. How many no-shows and cancellations 
occurred in 2012? 

Cancellations by client at time of scheduled 
pick-up were 4,099.  

By client report, no-shows by provider were 
247. 

92. Have performance penalties been 
levied against the current contract? If 
so, for what issues? 

Performance penalties have not been levied 
against the current contractor. 

93. Please provide a copy of the current 
contract with Access to Care. 

See Question 43. 

94. What significant changes will be made 
to the existing contract? 

 This is a new RFP. 

The State desires bidders to provide the best 
solution to the requirements of the RFP. 
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95. Please provide a copy of the Standard 
and Quarterly reports referenced on 
pages 53-54 of the RFP.  

 

The State desires bidders to provide the best 
solution to the requirements of the RFP. 

Per IV. F. 1. “…The bidder shall submit report 
templates for Department consideration as 
part of the response.” 

Please refer to Section I.V. E. 1 and 2 on 
pages 51 and 52. 

Appropriate templates and materials will be 
made available to the contractor upon contract 
award. 

96. Please provide a copy of all reports 
utilized for Quality Assessment and 
Improvement. 

See Question 95. 

 

97. Please provide a copy of current policy 
and procedures, Customer Service 
IVR scripts, Needs assessment and 
script, Client Notice of Action 
templates, Client Education materials 
and NET provider notification 
templates. 

 

See Question 95. 

98. Please a copy of the Transportation 
Provider contract. 

The Medicaid Service Provider Agreement 
(MC-19)  and the Service Provider Agreement 
Non-Emergency Transportation Addendum 
(MC-211) can be viewed at: 
http://dhhs.ne.gov/medicaid/Pages/med_provi
derenrollment.aspx  

 

http://dhhs.ne.gov/medicaid/Pages/med_providerenrollment.aspx
http://dhhs.ne.gov/medicaid/Pages/med_providerenrollment.aspx

